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The former railroad depot in downtown Mayville is located between the tracks of 
Burlington Northern, Incorporated, on the east and Front Street on the west, with Main 
Street to the north. There are no outbuildings or landscaping features on the prop­ 
erty, although a cinder platform formerly extended the length of the depot on the track 
side. (The platform was removed, as specified by Burlington Northern in leasing the 
building to the city of Mayville for use as a future museum. The company has also in­ 
dicated that fencing must be erected on the now-open north, south, and east sides of 
the building, and doors on the east elevation sealed, thus necessitating cutting new 
entrances elsewhere.)

The 1-story depot measures 28 by 137 feet and has brick walls laid in common bond 
above a stone foundation. Its most visually arresting feature is the steeply pitched, 
wooden-shingled hipped roof with overhanging eaves which covers the main (north) block. 
The north slope of the roof is punctured by a small gable with brick pediment, which 
itself is broken by the tall shaft of a brick chimney. A similar chimney straddles the 
ridge of the north end of the gabled roof over the freight wing. Freight doors with 
angled boarding and multi-light transoms are on the south, east, and west elevations 
of the wing. A similar door on the east (track-side) elevation of the main block is 
the only means of access to the so-called "perishables room," there being no inside 
door to connect it to the depot interior. Two public entrances with paneled doors 
beneath transoms are also on the east elevation, as are a rectangular window bay and 
two conventional windows. The latter types on all elevations have 9 over 9, double- 
hung wooden sash between stone sills and brick lintels. Door and window openings in 
the building are topped by segmental-arch head casings, with the straight sides of 
those on the main block joined to form a continuous architrave molding of 4-course 
brickwork.

The interior of the depot, north to south, consists of women's and men's waiting 
rooms and restrooms; offices; storage room for perishables; corridor; and freight 
wing. The latter is unfinished, with exposed brick walls and roof-framing timbers. 
The ceiling in the men's waiting room was lowered ca. 1950, but original ceilings in 
the building, as well as the walls, are plastered. Wooden benches with wrought-iron 
armrests are suspended from the waiting-room walls. Standing wood finish includes 
broad baseboards, wainscoting, chair rail, 5-panel doors, and molded door and window 
framings with square corner blocks.
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The Goose River Heritage Center, a former depot, is a symbol of the railroad trans­ 
portation system which brought the town of Mayvilie into existence and promoted the 
settlement of North Dakota in the late nineteenth century. A fire destroyed the depot's 
predecessor, a more modest frame structure which, perhaps with improvements, might have 
been expected to serve Mayville for decades, as its counterparts did towns of comparable 
population in the state. Thus the opportunity arose to erect a new depot which in di­ 
mensions, design, and fabric was noticeably superior to the type of facility usually 
provided a community the size of Mayville. The inconsistency is possibly attributable 
to the concentration of wealth and influence in the vicinity, particularly that of the 
prominent and philanthropic Grandin family, which operated local bonanza wheat and pure­ 
bred stock farms.

Mayville was the product of the building of the Casselton branch of the Northern 
Pacific Railroad in 1880. Later in the decade, however, the line on which Mayville was 
located was relinquished by Northern Pacific to the Great Northern Railway in a settle­ 
ment of disputed trade areas between the two companies. In 1897, at a cost of $3700, 
Great Northern built the second Mayville depot, which served the town until 1974. It 
was then abandoned by Burlington Northern, Incorporated (a 1970 merger comprised of 
Great Northern, Northern Pacific, and two other railway companies), and scheduled for 
demolition.

In the fall of 1976, support for saving the Mayville depot was channeled by the 
Goose River Chapter of the Pioneer Daughters (a local genealogical group) into the for­ 
mation of the Goose River Heritage Center, Incorporated. Burlington Northern subse­ 
quently agreed to turn the depot over to the city of Mayville on a 99-year lease, and 
in turn the city has subleased the building to the Goose River Heritage Center, Incor­ 
porated. The latter has as its initial goal a membership of 1000 and a fund of $10,000. 
Its long-term project will be the conversion of the depot into a museum not only for 
Mayville but for the surrounding region through which the Goose River flows. Artifacts 
belonging to the Pioneer Daughters and exhibited since 1940 in the basement of the pub­ 
lic library will form the nucleus of the museum collection. Period rooms and shops will 
be installed in the depot, and offices for the Goose River Heritage Center, Incorporated, 
and a curator will be provided. Interior repairs will include replastering and painting 
walls, restoring wood trim such as wainscoting to its natural finish, and updating the 
electrical system. Exterior renovation will be minimal, consisting chiefly of tuck- 
pointing the brick walls and returning them to their original color.
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Also being considered is the creation of a small landscaped space between the 
depot and Main Street, thereby partially restoring the context once provided by a 
park on railroad property east of the depot. Planted in 1919 with flowers and ever­ 
greens, the former park also featured a monument erected by the local lodge of the 
Sons of Norway in honor of Bjornstjerne Bjornson (1832-1910), Norwegian poet, nov­ 
elist, dramatist, and winner of the 1903 Nobel prize in literature. In the 1940s 
Great Northern sold the park property to a produce firm, and the Bjornson monument 
was placed in Island Park on Goose River, at the west edge of town. If plans for 
the second depot park materialize, the monument will possibly be moved to it.


